
 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING APRIL 4, 2012    Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
WEDNESDAY APRIL 4, 2012  7:00 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE CALIFORNIA 92252 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENT: At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the 
Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone. The Board may not 
discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda.   
During either "Public Comment” Item, please use the podium microphone.  State your name and have your 
information prepared and be ready to provide your comments to the Board.  The District is interested and 
appreciates your comments.  A 3-minute time limit may be imposed.  Thank you. 
 

 
 

Pg    1-3 
Pg    4 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will be adopted in 
total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any individual or organization interested 
in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Minutes of March 7, 2012 Regular Board Meeting 
B. Approve Minutes of March 14, 2012 Special Board Meeting 

 
 7. RICK COOK PRESENTATION: DISTRICT DISASTER PREPAREDNESS 

 
 8. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 
 
 
 

Pg.   5 

 A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and Director Long; Kathleen 
Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant  

B. AD HOC GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT NEGOTIATION COMMITTEE: President 
Reynolds and Director Long: No report. 

C. AD HOC RECHARGE BASIN SITE VEGETATION: Vice President Luckman and Director Coate:  
Relocation of Joshua Trees at Groundwater Recharge Site:  Recommend that the Board concur with 
removing 15 Joshua Trees and relocating 10 onsite, at a cost of approximately $4,500 with work to be 
performed by Unique Landscape and Cactus Nursery, and relinquishing five of the trees to Unique 
Nursery. The Board ad hoc committee may have additional recommendations.  

D. ENGINEERING COMMITTEE:  Director Coate and Director Long: No Report. 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


 

                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING APRIL 4, 2012    Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
9. 

 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s jurisdiction that are not 
listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may not discuss at length or take action on 
items not on the agenda. 
 

 10. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 11. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
 

 12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Vice President Luckman: Recommend that the Board refer the Project Priority list to the 
Engineering Committee for review and prioritization, and recommendations to the Board. 

 
 14. ADJOURNMENT 

 

INFORMATION 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2012                         1                                                 

   
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

March 7, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Randy Little, Water Production Supervisor 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Mike Metts, District Engineer 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 12 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve the agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of March 7, 2012. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
Al Marquez of Joshua Tree commented on Board actions, stating that at the March 7th meeting the Board 

passed an item and later reconsidered the motion. He noted that local agencies are under scrutiny for 
compliance to the Brown Act. 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Long/Coate 4/1 to approve staff recommendation to authorize the President to sign a letter in support 

of a grant for $1 million of Proposition 84 funds for the Mojave Water Agency Integrated Regional 
Water Management Plan Update. 

   Coate  Aye 
Long  Aye  

   Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
7. WILL-SERVE LETTER FOR NEW JOSHUA TREE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PROJECT 

GIS Coordinator Keith Faul and General Manager Joe Guzzetta reported. It was noted that the Regional 
Water Quality Board authorized the project for septic rather than a package wastewater treatment 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2012                         2                                                 

system. 
MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to authorize staff to issue a “Will Serve Letter” to the Morongo Unified School 

District for the new Joshua Tree Elementary School Project. 
 
8. ADDITIONAL FUNDING FOR WELL #10 REPAIR 

Water Distribution Supervisor Randy Little reported and introduced Keith Collier of Legend Well and 
Pump. The condition of the well column and shaft were explained and it was noted that further repairs 
will be needed. 

MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to approve staff recommendation to authorize $28,000 in additional funds to 
replace the column in Well #10. 

 
9. STATUS OF PROJECTS UNDERWAY AND FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PROJECTS 

GM Guzzetta reviewed the status of the budget and reviewed in detail status of projects on the Project 
Priority List. Supervisor Little and District Engineer Mike Metts provided further information.  

  
10. PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 
 
11. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

The General Manager had nothing further to report. 
 
12. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 

District Counsel Gil Granito commented regarding proposed plans to build a casino in Joshua Tree noting 
that District is monitoring this situation closely and will be prepared to address concerns if an 
application is filed for this project.  

GM Guzzetta requested that Public Outreach Consultant Kathleen Radnich present a brief report. 
Ms. Radnich reported that the District is active at the Saturday Farmers Market in Joshua Tree. She invited 

Board members to visit the booth to interact with the public on Saturdays. 
  
13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

It was suggested that a report on the strategic planning workshop of March 14th be provided at the Regular 
Board Meeting of March 21st.  

 
14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 

Vice President Luckman reported attending the Mojave Water Agency Board meeting; MWA Director Art 
Bishop was appointed as Association of California Water Agencies Region 9 representative. Vice 
President Luckman noted that MWA is more reliant on property tax than JBWD; it was reported at 
MWA that some improvement is expected in property values after the next year.  

 
15. CLOSED SESSION 

A. Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of 
Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin Water District v. Robert Ellis, San 
Bernardino Superior Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 900168). 

B. Closed Session to confer with Legal Counsel on existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (a) of 
Government Code Section 54956.9.  (Re Joshua Basin Water District v. Ironhead LLC a California 



 

REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2012                         3                                                 

Limited Liability Company, Praxedes Beard and Does 1 – 10 inclusive, San Bernardino Superior 
Court - Joshua Tree District, Case No. CIVMS 1100087). 

C.  At this time the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b) 
to continue the evaluation performance process of the District’s General Manager. 

The Board went to Closed Session at 8:50 pm. Open session resumed at 9:35 pm. 
 
16. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

Mr. Granito stated the Board went into Closed Session on all closed session matters noted on tonight's 
agenda (Items 17. A, B, and C). 
Mr. Granito reported that during the first phase of the Closed Session, he had provided a very brief status 
report on the pending litigation matter noted as Item 17. A of tonight's agenda.....the Ellis litigation. Mr. 
Granito went on to report that during the second phase of the Closed Session, he had provided the Board 
with a status report on the pending litigation matter noted as Item 17. B of tonight's agenda.....the 
Ironhead-Prax Beard litigation. Mr. Granito reported that this matter had been settled as previously 
authorized by the Board which would result in dismissal of the litigation. Mr. Granito reported that as a 
result of the settlement, the District has acquired title to the land adjacent to its H-1 Tank site 
for $10,000. Mr. Granito stated that no further reportable action was taken on Items 17. A and B. 
Mr. Granito noted that Mr. Guzzetta had participated in the first & second phase of the Closed Session 
concerning Items 17. A and B and that Mr. Guzzetta did not attend the third and last session of the Closed 
Session. 
Mr. Granito reported that the third and last phase of the Closed Session concerned Item 17. C of tonight's 
agenda and that during this phase of the Closed Session the Board reviewed the Consultant's 
draft summary report. 
Mr. Granito concluded his report by stating that the Closed Session ended at approximately 9:35 PM.  
 
17. ADJOURNMENT  9:40 PM 

MSC Luckman/Long 5/0 to adjourn the March 7, 2012 Regular Meeting of the Joshua Basin Water District 
Board of Directors. 

 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday March 21, 2012 at 7:00 

pm. 
 



 

SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2012                         1                                                 

   
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

Minutes of the 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

March 14, 2012 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     8:27 AM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Frank Coate 
Bill Long 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Randy Little, Water Production Supervisor 
Jim Corbin, Water Distribution Supervisor 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
Anne Roman, Accountant 
Marie Salsberry, Executive Secretary 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Mike Metts, District Engineer 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
Martin Rauch, Rauch Communication Consultants Inc. 
 

GUESTS 1 
 
4. STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP 
President Reynolds introduced Martin Rauch of Rauch Communication Consultants. Mr. Rauch explained 

the strategic planning process.  
Under Mr. Rauch’s direction, the Board and management staff discussed expectations for results of this 

meeting, District performance, and priorities. The District’s Mission Statement was reviewed. 
The meeting was recessed from 9:43 to 9:50 am and was recessed from 12:10 to 12:40 pm for lunch. 
Director Wilson left the meeting at approximately 9:15 am. 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:45 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted; 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Joe Guzzetta, General Manager 
The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday March 21, 2012 at 7:00 

pm. 
 



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
SUPPLEMENTAL DATA SHEET 

 
 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors       April 4, 2012 
 
 
Report to: President and Members of the Board 
From:  Joe Guzzetta, General Manager  
 
TOPIC: RELOCATION OF JOSHUA TREES AT GROUND WATER 

RECHARGE SITE 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board concur with removing 15 Joshua trees at the 
ground water recharge site, relocating 10 of those onsite, at a 
cost of approximately $4,500 with work to be performed by 
Unique Landscape and Cactus Nursery, and relinquishing five 
of the trees to Unique Nursery.  The Board ad hoc Vegetation 
Committee may have additional recommendations. 
 

ANALYSIS: A requirement of the County desert plants permit is to relocate 
Joshua trees from the area of the ground water recharge 
project that is to be graded.  Unique Landscape and Cactus 
Nursery and a sub-contractor have the spade equipment to 
move the trees.  Cost is $350 per tree for trees requiring a 
small spade, and $450 per tree for trees requiring a larger 
spade.  There are a total of 15 trees. 
 
Five of the 15 trees are in such poor health that they would 
not be suitable for transplanting onsite.  It is proposed that 
Unique remove those trees at its own cost in order to attempt 
to salvage the five trees, even for a short period of time. 
 
In the event that the Board wishes to keep the five trees 
onsite in order to try to salvage them, an additional $3,000, 
approximately, would be required to move the trees and 
provide additional pruning, caging, and other care. 
 
The trees should be moved in April in order to have a good 
transplant success rate. 

 




